ST MARK'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022



THURSDAY



A24

29/12/2022 COMPANIES HOUSE #347

CONTENTS

	Page
Reference and administrative details	1
Trustees' report	2 - 11
Governance statement	12 - 17
Statement on regularity, propriety and compliance	18
Statement of trustees' responsibilities	19
Independent auditors' report on the financial statements	20 - 22
Independent reporting accountant's report on regularity	23 - 24
Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account	25 - 26
Balance sheet	27 - 28
Statement of cash flows	29
Notes to the financial statements	30 - 58

ST MARK'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS

Members

A Hazell

C Lees

S Matthews

Trustees

L McGaw, Chair of Trustees

S Adeney (resigned 14 July 2022)

E Howell, Vice Chair

C Burn (resigned 1 September 2021)

P Whittle V Biles

R Higgins (resigned 14 July 2022) A Bright (appointed 1 September 2021)

M Evans R Wells

S Casey (appointed 14 July 2022)

Company registered

number

09875389

Company name

St Mark's Church of England Primary School

Principal and registered Talbot Village

office

Bournemouth
Dorset
BH10 4JA

Accounting officer

A Bright

Senior management

team

A Bright, Headteacher (appointed 01/09/2021)

A Roberts, Deputy Head

A Triplow, School Business Manager

A Saunders, IN Coordinator

C Burn, Headteacher (resigned 01/09/2021)

Independent auditors

Griffin

Chartered Accountants Silverdown Office Park Exeter Airport Business Park

Exeter EX5 2UX

TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the charitable company for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees' report and a directors' report under company law.

The Academy Trust operates an academy for pupils aged 4 to 11 serving a catchment area in Dorset. It has a pupil capacity of 420 and had a roll of 419 in the school census on May 2022.

St Mark's CE Primary School is part of Bringing Schools Together with 4 other local primary schools, namely Kingsleigh Primary School, Moordown St John's CE Primary School, Muscliff Primary School and St. Michael's CE Primary School.

All five schools have their unique ethos and are all striving to promote and secure outstanding school improvement and raise standards for the children in their schools. Each member school has recognised the value in coming together as a group of schools. Bringing Schools Together promotes collaboration and the sharing of ideas. This works to strengthen each individual school through mutual respect and team work. Our shared vision enables our school staff to work together for staff inset and training. There are opportunities for professional challenge across the schools. Bringing Schools Together encourages Governing Bodies to share ideas for school improvement. More importantly the Trust benefits our children through outreach projects. Across the five schools there are opportunities for our children to work together in topic work and other activities. The Trust also benefits from economies of scale for purchasing and training.

Further information is available on the Bringing Schools Together website.

Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution

The Academy is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The charitable company's Memorandum of Association is the primary governing document of the Academy.

The Trustees of St Mark's Church of England Primary School are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law.

The charitable company is known as St Mark's Church of England Primary School.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved aré included in the Reference and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease to be a Member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a Member.

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Structure, governance and management (continued)

c. Trustees' indemnities

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Trust has insurance in place to protect Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Trust business. The limit of this indemnity is £10,000,000 and this cover is provided as part of the Risk Protection Arrangement offered by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

Trustees shall be appointed or elected, as the case may be, as set out in the Academy Trust's Article of Association and Funding Agreement.

The Headteacher shall be treated for all purposes as being an ex officio Trustee.

The Parent Trustee(s) shall be elected by parents of registered pupils at the Academy. A Parent Trustee must be a parent of a pupil at the Academy at the time when they are elected. The Board of Trustees shall make all necessary arrangements for, and determine all other matters relating to, an election of Parent Trustees, including any question of whether a person is a parent of a registered pupil at the Academy. Any election of Parent Trustees which is contested, shall be held by secret ballot. Where a vacancy for a Parent Trustee is required to be filled by election, the Board of Trustees shall take such steps as are reasonably practical, to ensure that every person who is known to them to be a parent of a registered pupil at the Academy, is informed of the vacancy and that it is required to be filled by election, and given the opportunity to do so. The number of Parent Trustees required, shall be made up by Parent Trustees appointed by the Board if the number of parents standing for election is less than the number of vacancies. In appointing a Parent Trustee the Board shall appoint a person who is the parent of a registered pupil at the Academy; or where it is not reasonably practical to do so, a person who is the parent of a child of compulsory school age.

The Staff Trustees shall be elected by staff members at the Academy. A Staff Trustee must be a staff member at the time when he/she is elected. If a Staff Trustee ceases to be a staff member then he/she shall be deemed to have resigned and shall cease to be a Trustee. The Trustees shall make all necessary arrangements for, and determine all other matters relating to, an election of the Staff Trustees, including any question of whether a person is a staff member. Any election of Trustees which is contested shall be held by secret ballot. Trustees shall be appointed or elected, as the case may be, as set out in the Academy Trust's Articles of Association and Funding Agreement.

Foundation Trustees and Foundation Parent Trustees are appointed through the Church/Diocese and Talbot Village Trust on an as and when basis. Foundation Trustees have a particular purpose to safeguard the character of the school and ensure it is conducted in accordance with any founding documents, but otherwise every Trustee's role is to govern the school in the best interest of pupils, not to represent the interests of the constituency from which they were elected or appointed.

Trustees are appointed for a four year period. The exception to this is the Headteacher, to whom the time limit does not apply. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee can be reappointed or re-elected.

When co-opting new Trustees, the Board will give consideration to the skills and experience mix of existing Trustees in order to ensure that the Board has the necessary skills to contribute fully to the Academy's development.

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Structure, governance and management (continued)

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

Trustees undergo an induction and mentoring process. The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend upon their existing experience but would always include a tour of the Academy and a chance to meet staff and pupils. All Trustees have access to copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Trustees. As there are normally only two or three new Trustees a year, induction tends to be done informally and is tailored specifically to the individual. Advantage is taken of specific courses offered by the Local Authority and other bodies.

f. Organisational structure

St Mark's Church of England Primary School has a Board of Trustees, the composition of which is set out in the Academy's Articles of Association. The school has five main Trustee Committees: Curriculum and Standards, Resources, Ethos, Audit and Admissions to which Trustees are appointed. The chair of each of these committees forms the members of the Standing committee. The school will also call on members of the Board to sit on a Staff Dismissals Committee, Staff Dismissals Appeal Committee and a Performance and Appraisal committee. The Board of Trustees normally meets at least four times every academic year. The Board and its committees have Terms of Reference which are reviewed annually and contain details of compositions, responsibilities, delegated authorities and matters reserved for the Board itself. The Board establishes an overall framework for the governance of the school and determines membership, terms of reference and procedures of Committees and other groups. It receives reports including policies from its Committees for ratification. It monitors the activities of the Committees through the minutes of their meetings. The Board may from time to time establish Working Groups to perform specific tasks over a limited timescale.

The following decisions are reserved to the Board of Trustees:

- to consider any proposals for changes to the status or constitution of the school and its committee structure
- to appoint or remove the Chairman and/or Vice Chairman
- to appoint the Headteacher and Clerk to the Governors
- to approve the School Development Plan
- to approve the budget and variations to budget over £20,000
- to authorise expenditure/orders over £50,000 (excluding payroll)

The Trustees have devolved responsibility for the day-to-day management of the school to the Headteacher and Senior Leadership Team (SLT). The SLT comprises of: the Headteacher, the Deputy Headteacher, the School Business Manager and the INCO. Their roles and responsibilities are reviewed annually by the Governing Body as part of the School Development Plan. The SLT implement the policies laid down by the Trustees and reports back to them on performance. Some spending control is devolved to Budget Holders which must be authorised in line with the Scheme of Delegation. The Headteacher is responsible for the appointment of staff, though appointment panels for Headteacher and Deputy Headteacher roles always include a Trustee.

The Headteacher is the Accounting Officer.

ST MARK'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Structure, governance and management (continued)

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year

Pay and remuneration of key management personnel is set by the Performance and Appraisal Committee (further detail available in the Financial Procedures Document).

Appraisal is one part of continuous year-round staff performance management or development. It is a key part of the annual cycle by which the performance of the staff of the school is accessed and developed. NGA recommend that the Headteachers appraisal takes place at the earliest opportunity after the start of the academic year, which will allow the senior executive leader to set targets for teachers based upon their own objectives.

Most performance management/development cycles will include an annual appraisal meeting, at which stage the appraisal panel and Headteacher meet to discuss performance against the objective set at the beginning of the year and the teachers' standards. Many cycles will include a mid-year progress review in January. At least termly, the Headteacher will meet with the chair of governors to address how things are generally within the school and how they are progressing with the areas targeted for improvement. The chair of governors will then report back to appraisal committee.

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Full-time equivalent employee number

Percentage of time spent on facility time

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Percentage of time	Number of employees	
0% 1%-50% 51%-99% 100%	1	
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time	£	
Total cost of facility time Total pay bill Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time	- - -	%
Paid trade union activities		
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours	-	%

1

1

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Objectives and activities

a. Objects and aims

The school's leaders are relentless and uncompromising in their pursuit of excellence, striving to continually improve the already high levels of academic achievement. The school's leaders and Trustees evaluate its effectiveness well and consequently have a good understanding of the school's strengths, but can also identify where improvements are needed. Any identified shortcomings are addressed with determination. There is a strong focus on continually improving teaching and learning and to provide all staff with good training to enhance their professional effectiveness and increase the school's capacity to bring about further improvement.

Arrangements for the appraisal of teaching staff is rigorous and highly effective in impacting on pupils' achievement. The school has in place structures to ensure that its work is evaluated at all levels, and that plans are implemented to consolidate success and secure further improvement. Clear lines of responsibility and monitoring exist to ensure that targets are met and that any intervention is timely. The analysis of assessment data and systematic lesson observations are used to identify areas of concern, with targeted observations used to tackle areas of underperformance.

Improving line management, targeted support for underperforming staff, and the effective application of the appraisal policy have been instrumental in raising the quality of teaching. The quality of leadership and management at all levels across all areas of the school's work is good, and is improving further.

A broad and balanced curriculum meets the pupils' needs extremely well, promoting and sustaining their thirst for knowledge and love of learning. The volume of extra-curricular activities ensures that the interests and talents of the pupils are met. The school's curriculum, ethos and expectations promote pupil's outstanding spiritual, moral, social and cultural development, and also fundamental British values. Numerous trips provide good opportunities to experience and learn about different interests.

The thoughtfully planned curriculum ensures that pupils of all ages are encouraged to lead safe and healthy lives. The experienced and knowledgeable Board of Trustees effectively undertakes its statutory duties. Trustees manage and scrutinise the school's finances regularly, ensuring that the funding is spent wisely and contributes to improving pupil outcomes. Staff and resources are deployed efficiently to benefit all groups of pupils. Trustees are highly supportive of the Headteacher and all the staff, but they are resolute in holding leaders to account. Trustees act to improve their knowledge and understanding through actively engaging in training and spending time in school.

The school launched its new Vision and Values following extensive consultation with the school community. Our school vision is:

Loving God - Serving others - Flourishing together

Our three core values are deliberately chosen as verbs, as things which we will all 'do' to support us living out our vision every day are:

Respect - Aspire - Rejoice

Our underpinning Bible quote, which is like the golden thread through our Vision and Values is:

"Encourage one another and build each other up." - 1 Thessalonians 5:11

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Objectives and activities (continued)

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The school's key priorities identified in the School Development Plan are to:

- Raise achievement in Reading, Writing and Maths across the school
- Develop a rigorous, broad and balanced curriculum which enables all children make excellent progress
- To raise achievement of vulnerable groups and close gaps in attainment, including post-COVID gaps
- To promote and develop positive mental health and well-being for staff and pupils across the school through engagement with the Sandwell Project
- Strengthen the effectiveness of leadership and management

Details of the strategies and activities as well as evaluations of each objective are recorded in the St Mark's Church of England Primary School Development Plan 2021-22.

c. Public benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with duty in Section (5) of the charities Act 2011 to have due regard to the Charities Commission's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers of duties. They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academy's aims and objectives and in planning its future activities.

Achievements and performance

a. Achievements and performance

The school has imbedded a new Senior Leadership Team in 2021-22, who were committed to delivering the School Development Plan across the year. This has been supported by the Trustees and BST. A new appraisal regime was also implemented across the school to ensure that the performance of all staff was developed and assessed throughout the year.

In 2022 the school was awarded the Sandwell Well-being Charter Mark, following "demonstration of a commitment to an ongoing whole school approach to emotional health and well-being through a process of audit, action planning and review", achieving a key objective of the School Development Plan.

The school achieved expected standard scores at Key Stage 2 at or above national rates in all subjects, with the key achievement of 70% Reading, Writing, Maths combined 11 points ahead of the national average of 59%. Key Stage 1 achieved 63% in Reading, Writing, Maths combined – there is no national data to compare this against.

Across Year 2-6, 80% of children have made expected or better progress in reading, 87% expected or better progress in writing, and 89% expected or better progress in maths. In the Year 4 Multiplication Timetable Check, 47% achieved full marks of 25/25.

A focus on catch up and wellbeing has continued this year, supported by the Recovery Premium and National Tutoring Programme. Significant intervention and focus has been given to support key children and groups across the school. Pupil Progress meetings include and Pupil Premium and SEND focus. The school had a safeguarding audit with positive feedback from BCP Council, and conducted full school safeguard training in June.

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Achievements and performance (continued)

The school were able to take part in an increased number of sporting activities with reduced restrictions, including competitive events with other schools. The school were supported by AFC Bournemouth through the Sports Premium across all years, and all children used the in-school swimming pool for lessons, leading to 100% of Year 6 children achieving the expecting swimming standard.

b. Key performance indicators

The proportion of children known to be eligible for free school meals is 10.7%, a number which has grown rapidly in recent years. The proportion of children with an Educational Health Care Plan is 2.9%, with 13.8% of children requiring some form of specialist educational support (both higher than national levels). English as an additional language is 11.2%. Overall attendance was 94.0%. There were 9 in year admissions, including 1 EHCP admission which took Year 3 over number.

Unvalidated SATs results for Year 6 against National are:

	St Mark's	National
Reading EXS	82%	74%
Reading GDS	25%	
Writing EXS	75%	69%
Writing GDS	23%	
Maths EXS	77%	71%
Maths GDS	30%	
GPS EXS	72%	72%
GPS GDS	40%	
Combined Score:		
RWM EXS	70%	59%
RWM GDS	15%	

c. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the accounting policies.

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Financial review

Most of the school's income is obtained from the Department of Education (DfE) through ESFA in the form of recurrent grants. The grants received from the DfE and associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds on the Statement of Financial Activities. During the school received a total revenue income of £2,218,997 and incurred revenue expenditure of £2,392,243.

The school has a deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme in respect of its non-teaching staff. The deficit is incorporated within the Statement of Financial Activity with details in Note 22.

This year the school has updated Financial Procedures, purchasing Policy and Scheme of Delegation, which sets out the framework for financial management, including financial responsibilities of the Board, Headteacher, Senior Leadership Team and other staff, as well as delegated authority for spending. Other policies reviewed and updated where necessary.

a. Reserves policy

It is the Trust's view that there should be reserves to support St Mark's to achieve their outcomes for today's children and not hold reserves unnecessarily. The Trustees review the reserve levels of the school annually. The Trustees require St Mark's to work towards a reserve of one months' staffing cost. This, they believe, will give the school a working capital buffer and the ability to make decisions that meet the outcomes for the pupils both in the short term and longer term. This review encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The governors take into consideration the future plans of the school, the uncertainty over future income streams and other key risks identified during the risk review.

The Trustees have determined that the appropriate level of free cash reserves should be approximately £150,000. The reason for this is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance or to maintain staffing levels in the event of a reduction in funding. The school's levels of free reserves on 31 August 2022 is £217,223.

b. Investment policy

Due to the nature of funding, the school may hold cash balances surplus to its short term requirements. The school has an Investment Policy in place for which is reviewed by Trustees.

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

c. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trustees consider the accuracy and appropriateness of the risk policy and register as part of its audit deliberations each year. The principal risks and uncertainties identified by the governors are categorised into Reputational, Safety, Safeguarding, Organisational, Educational, Personnel, GDPR, Financial and COVID-19 related. The risks are reviewed at the Resources Committee.

There is a continuing risk that after school closures children are not able to catch up on the education that they have missed out. The school has received a reduced amount of Recovery Premium and National Tutoring Programme funding, which will continue into 2022/33 at a further reduced rate. The school will need to carefully plan how this is used to target key children who require catch up the most.

The school finances are a continued risk, due to several factors including inflationary costs (including energy and staffing), risk of school closures (which decrease extended services and lettings income) and SEN needs where funding is significantly below the amount to fund the support required. Inflationary costs and SEN needs are putting a particular strain on the budget which would not be sustainable in future years without an appropriate increase in funding. The school has invested this year into internal audit into management of financial processing to ensure that the Trustees are receiving accurate and timely information to ensure that financial decisions are fully informed.

The risk of spread of COVID-19 is a significant risk to both health of children and staff, and finances due to the costs of covering absences. COVID-19 absence numbers were high during winter periods but have reduced, but are still considered an ongoing risk.

Fundraising

The majority of income to St Mark's Church of England Primary School comes directly from the Department of Education and Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole Council. The school has also accepted donations from Talbot Village Trust and the St Mark's Staff and Parents Association (SPA), which fundraises on behalf of the school. The school is aware of the Charity fundraising: a guide to Trustee duties (CC20), and the responsibilities of the school to plan, supervise, and ensure accountability and compliance across any fundraising being undertaken on behalf of the school. Any large purchases made by the SPA is completed through the school, following the Academy Trust Handbook purchasing rules.

Plans for future periods

The purpose of St Mark's Church of England Primary School is to provide an outstanding education, helping all pupils to access a learning environment that is fulfilling, exciting and challenging. This will help prepare them for senior school and our aim is to assist the pupils in being "well-rounded" children. In order to achieve the academic standards necessary, the school will have an integrated and connected outstanding teaching and learning programme from the outset. The school will continue to imbed the new visions and value to support children in their development while at the school. The school will continue work on mental health following the Sandwell review, and will train and appoint a Senior Mental Health Lead.

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

No funds are held as custodian on behalf of others.

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
- that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

Auditors

The auditors, Griffin, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. The designated Trustees will propose a motion reappointing the auditors at a meeting of the Trustees.

The Trustees' report was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company directors, on 1 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

mcGasa

L McGaw Chair of Trustees

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that St Mark's Church of England Primary School has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between St Mark's Church of England Primary School and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 4 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
L McGaw, Chair of Trustees	4	4
S Adeney (resigned 14 July 2022)	3	• 4
E Howell, Vice Chair	4	4
C Burn(resigned 1 September 2021)	4	4
P Whittle	4	4
V Biles	4	4
R Higgins (resigned 14 July 2022)	4	4
A Bright (appointed 1 September 2021)	4	4
M Evans	3	4
R Wells	4	4
S Casey (appointed 14 July 2022)	1	1

Upon incorporation, the existing Governors of the school were appointed as directors of St Mark's Church of England Primary School. The composition of the Board is as per Articles 48 and 49 of the Articles of Association of the Trust. St Mark's C.E. Primary School is part of the Bringing Schools Together Umbrella Trust. It uses collaborative working within the five schools in the Trust to support the sharing of ideas and development of children and staff. The Board devolve responsibility for monitoring, evaluation and approval of most statutory duties to six working sub committees made up of directors with members of the school Senior Leadership Team invited to attend where necessary. These sub-committees are structures of the organisation and ensure sufficient and robust oversight of key priorities. The working sub-committees are:

Curriculum and Standards Resources Audit Admissions Ethos Standing

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

The sub-committees were reorganised in September 2020, and Audit Committee completely separated from the Resources Committee in 2022 following a review in December 2021. At the beginning of the year, Mr Andrew Bright was appointed ex-officio governor when he became Headteacher of the school. Mr Simon Casey joined as a parent governor in July, and Reverend Rupert Higgins and Mrs Sara Adeney stood down from their roles. The Academy considers annually its governance arrangements to ensure the effectiveness of the Board. The Board of Trustees is provided with a wide range of information, including exam results, pupil progress, attendance information, financial statements and pupil demographics. The Board has been able to use this information to effectively plan strategies, and the school has been able to provide additional information where this is required.

The Full Governing Body met four times in 2021-22, with an additional sixteen sub-committee meetings, ensuring that the governors has sufficient and timely information. Governors were also provided with monthly finance reports.

The school keep a complete and up to date register of interests, and checks if there are any additional interests at each Trustee meeting. Where there is a potential conflict of interest (for example, staff trustees and pay awards), the conflicted party is removed from the decision making process. If there is a query on if there is a conflict of interest, advice is taken from auditors and the potentially conflicted party removed from the decision making process until advice has been received.

The last self-assessment of the governance took place in 2020/21. This led to the existing governance structure, including regular in school meetings outside governance committees, which ensures that governance is effective. The school intends to complete a further self-assessment by Summer 2023. An external review will be considered afer this date.

When the school was inspected by Ofsted in March 2018, they noted that the school and Governors have a deep and accurate picture of where the school's priorities for improvement lie, and that Governors fulfil their safeguarding responsibilities effectively and carry out regular checks on the school's safeguarding arrangement. The Governors were also fully involved in discussions regarding the structure of the umbrella trust throughout the year.

The Resource Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees and has a good understanding of the Academy's finances. Its remit is to ensure sound management of the Trust's finances and resources enabling financial resilience and sustainability that assures the future of the Academy. Its purpose is to:

- To review, adopt and monitor a Finance Policy which includes the local scheme of delegation for spending and budgetary adjustments (virements) for the committee, headteacher and other nominated staff.
- To review, adopt and monitor all additional financial policies, including a charging and remissions policy.
- To establish and maintain a three year financial plan, taking into the account priorities of the School/Academy Improvement Plan, roll projection and signals from central government and (if applicable) the LA regarding future years' budgets, within the constraints of available information.
- To draft and propose to the governing body for adoption an annual school budget taking into account the priorities of the School/Academy Improvement Plan.
- To make decisions in respect of service level agreements.
- To ensure that sufficient funds are set aside for pay increments as set out in the Pay Policy and as recommended by the headteacher.
- To monitor the income and expenditure throughout the year of all delegated and devolved funds against the annual budget plan.
- To receive at least termly budget monitoring reports from the headteacher.
- To report back to each meeting of the full governing body and to alert them of potential problems or significant anomalies at an early date.
- To meet with other committees and provide them with the information they need to perform their duties.

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

- Subject to the local scheme of delegation, to approve any budgetary adjustments that will from time to time be necessary in response to the evolving requirements of the school.
- To prepare the Trustees Report to form part of the Statutory Accounts of the governing body and for filing in accordance with Companies Act requirements.
- To receive auditors' reports and to recommend the governing body action as appropriate in response to audit findings.
- To recommend to the full governing body the appointment or reappointment of the auditors
- To provide support and guidance for the governing body and the headteacher on all matters relating to the maintenance and development of the premises and grounds, including Health and Safety.
- To ensure that an annual inspection of the premises and grounds takes place and a report is received identifying any issues.
- To inform the governing body of the report and set out a proposed order of priorities for maintenance and development, for the approval of the governing body.
- To arrange professional surveys and emergency work as necessary.
- To create a project committee where necessary to oversee any major developments.
- To establish and keep under review an Accessibility Plan and a Building Development Plan
- To review, adopt and monitor a Health and Safety policy.
- To ensure that the governing body's responsibilities regarding litter, refuse and dog excrement are discharged according to Section 89 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, so far as is practicable.
- To ensure that the school is staffed sufficiently for the fulfilment of the school's development plan and the effective operation of the school.
- To establish and oversee the operation of the school's Appraisal Policy including the arrangements and operation of the school's appraisal procedures for the Headteacher.
- To establish a Pay Policy for all categories of staff.
- To be responsible for the administration and review of the Pay Policy.
- To ensure that staffing procedures (including recruitment procedures) follow equalities legislation.
- To annually review procedures for dealing with staff discipline and grievances and make recommendations to the governing body for approval.
- To monitor approved procedures for staff discipline and grievance and ensure that staff are kept informed of these.
- To recommend to the governing body staff selection procedures, ensuring that they conform with safer recruitment practice, and to review these procedures as necessary.
- In consultation with staff, to oversee any process leading to staff reductions.
- To establish the annual and longer-term salary budgets and other costs relating to personnel, e.g. training.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
L McGaw	3	3
E Howell	3	3
M Evans	2	3
P Whittle	3	3
A Bright	2	2

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate.

As part of a Local Collaborative Trust, the Bringing Schools Together (BST), an Umbrella Academy Trust agreement exists between Muscliff Community Primary School, St Mark's CE Primary School, St Michael's CE Primary School, Moordown St. John's CE Primary School and Kingsleigh Primary School. The BST Business Managers (SBMs) are, as a group, supportive of each other in achieving value for money and economies of scale for each of the Trust's Schools. SBMs have taken responsibility on Aim 4 of the Trusts Business Plan which deals with Finance and Probity. They identify, discuss and negotiate best possible value for all school purchases, including contracts, SLA's and resources. The school has worked with other SBMs in the trust and internal auditors to review the financial management and processes in place at the school in 2022 to ensure the value for money is delivered while maintaining financial controls are in place.

The school has delivered saving by purchasing software, support, services and goods through joined up purchases with other BST schools. In 2021/22 the school has joined other schools in the trust into buying into new educational software, educational psychology services and training, delivering real savings which can be reinvested into the school and new curriculum resources.

The school has implemented a new Senior Leadership Team structure this year, and invested in the non-teaching staff structure. This has ensured that teaching staff are given the support required to delivery efficient and effective learning in the classroom, concentrating on their core role in the classroom. End of year outcomes of pupils support the positive affect of this restructure.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in St Mark's Church of England Primary School for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy's significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of Trustees.

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Capacity to handle risk (continued)

The risk and control framework

The Academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

- Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees.
- regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
- setting targets to measure financial and other performance
- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
- identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided to employ Carter & Coley as internal auditor.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the Academy's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

- Month end close down procedure and control accounts
- · Implementation of Griffin year end adjustments
- · Purchases process
- VAT filings
- Red and amber Griffin updates
- Contracts review
- Updated financial procedures
- Balance sheet reconciliations

On a tri-annual basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the audit and risk committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Trustees' financial responsibilities and annually prepares a short summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.

The external auditor delivered their schedule of work as intended and a plan is in place to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

- the financial management and governance self-assessment process;
- the work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.
- the work of the external auditors;

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control by the audit and risk committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 1 December 2022 and signed on their behalf by:

L McGaw

Chair of Trustees

A Bright

Accounting Officer

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of St Mark's Church of England Primary School I have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the funding agreement in place between the Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

I confirm that I and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Academy's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

A Bright

Accounting Officer
Date: 1 December 2022

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial. Under company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022.
- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 1 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

L McGaw

(Chair of Trustees)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ST MARK'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of St Mark's Church of England Primary School (the 'Academy') for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ST MARK'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements and our Auditors' report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
- the Trustees' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ST MARK'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL (CONTINUED)

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Our audit procedures have reviewed for evidence of management override, any ongoing legal cases, completeness of related party transactions, as well as an ongoing consideration of fraud and irregularities during the whole audit process.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditors' report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Misty Nickells (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Griffin, Statutory Auditor Silverdown Office Park Exeter Airport Business Park Exeter EX5 2UX

, ~ , °C

1 December 2022

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ST MARK'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 9 August 2018 and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by St Mark's Church of England Primary School during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to St Mark's Church of England Primary School and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to St Mark's Church of England Primary School and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than St Mark's Church of England Primary School and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of St Mark's Church of England Primary School's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of St Mark's Church of England Primary School's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 December 2015 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the Academy's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes:

- Review of governance procedures
- Evaluation and testing of the system of internal controls, such as authorisation and value for money procedures
- Substantive testing on relevant transactions

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ST MARK'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Misty Nickells (Senior statutory auditor)

Reporting Accountant Griffin, Statutory Auditor Silverdown Office Park Exeter Airport Business Park Exeter EX5 2UX

Date: 1 December 2032

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

		Unrestricted	Restricted	Restricted fixed asset	Total	Total
		funds	funds	funds	funds	funds
		2022	2022	2022	2022	2021
	Note	£	£	£	£	£
Income from:						
Donations and capital						
grants	3	44,476	30,600	13,690	88,766	3,637
Other trading activities	5	97,335	-	-	97,335	68,668
nvestments	6	29	-	-	29	17
Charitable activities	4	28,740	2,017,817	-	2,046,557	1,938,300
Total income		170,580	2,048,417	13,690	2,232,687	2,010,622
Expenditure on:						
Raising funds		. 38,780	-	-	38,780	7,957
Charitable activities		64,406	2,282,057	23,939	2,370,402	2,132,380
Total expenditure		103,186	2,282,057	23,939	2,409,182	2,140,337
Net						
income/(expenditure)		67,394	(233,640)	(10,249)	(176,495)	(129,715)
Transfers between funds	16	(7,783)	(22,417)	30,200	-	-
Net movement in funds before other						
recognised gains/(losses)		59,611	(256,057)	19,951	(176,495)	(129,715)
Other recognised						
gains/(losses):						
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit						
pension schemes	22	-	1,718,000	-	1,718,000	(87,000)
Net movement in funds		59,611	1,461,943		1,541,505	(216,715)
Reconciliation of funds:						
Total funds brought						
forward		153,526	(2,155,857)	12,499	(1,989,832)	(1,773,117)
Net movement in funds		59,611	1,461,943	19,951	1,541,505	(216,715)
Total funds carried forward		213,137	(693,914)	32,450	(448,327)	(1,989,832)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 30 to 58 form part of these financial statements.

ST MARK'S CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee) REGISTERED NUMBER: 09875389

BALANCE SHEET FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

	Note		2022 £		2021 £
Fixed assets			_	•	. ~
Tangible assets	13		31,810		12,499
		-	31,810		12,499
Current assets					
Debtors	14	75,100		148,447	
Cash at bank and in hand		336,814		165,041	
	•	411,914		313,488	
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year	15	(194,051)		(142,819)	
Net current assets	•		217,863		170,669
Total assets less current liabilities		-	249,673		183,168
Net assets excluding pension liability		-	249,673		183,168
Defined benefit pension scheme liability	22		(698,000)		(2,173,000)
Total net assets		=	(448,327)		(1,989,832)
Funds of the Academy Restricted funds:					
Fixed asset funds	16	32,450		12,499	
Restricted income funds	16	4,086		17,143	
Restricted funds excluding pension asset	16	36,536		29,642	
Pension reserve	16	(698,000)		(2,173,000)	
Total restricted funds	16		(661,464)		(2,143,358)
Unrestricted income funds	16		213,137		153,526
Total funds		-	(448,327)		(1,989,832)

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities subject to the small companies regime.

The financial statements on pages 25 to 58 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 01 December 2022 and are signed on their behalf, by:

L McGaw

(Chair of Trustees)

mc60th

The notes on pages 30 to 58 form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

	Note	2022 £	2021 £
Cash flows from operating activities			
Net cash provided by operating activities	18	199,449	42,164
Cash flows from investing activities	19	(27,676)	8,697
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year		171,773	50,861
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		165,041	114,180
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	20, 21	336,814	165,041
	=		

The notes on pages 30 to 58 form part of these financial statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

1.2 Going concern

The Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the trust has adequate resources to continue to operate for the foreseeable future. The Trustees have considered a number of factors in arriving at this conclusion. The academy had a revenue reserves position at the 31 August 2022 of £217,223, with £336,814 held of cash at this date. A detailed budget for 2022/23 has been prepared and updated to take into account the current high rates of inflation. This budget for 2022/23 is forecasting a small surplus after taking these additional costs into account. A 3-year budget has also been prepared which shows surpluses in later years.

1.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

. Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of financial activities in the year in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related conditions) where receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.3 Income (continued)

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent the Academy has provided the goods or services.

1.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

1.5 Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by the Academy; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the institution with whom the funds are deposited.

1.6 Taxation

The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.7 Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of these assets, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases:

Furniture and fixtures

- 5 years straight line

Computer equipment

- 3 years straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

1.8 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.9 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.10 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.11 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees' working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.12 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 22, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgment:

The academy obtains use of fixed assets as a lessee. The classification of such leases as operating or finance lease requires the Academy to determine, based on an evaluation of terms and conditions of the arrangements, whether it retains or acquires the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these assets and accordingly whether the lease requires an asset and liability to be recognised in the balance sheet.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

3. Income from donations and capital grants

·	Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Restricted funds 2022 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £
Donations	44,476	30,600	4,965	80,041
Capital Grants	-	-	8,725	8,725
	44,476	30,600	13,690	88,766
	Unrestricted funds 2021 £	Restricted funds 2021 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2021 £	Total funds 2021 £
Donations	5,064	(17,607)	7,500	(5,043)
Capital Grants	-	-	8,680	8,680
	5,064	(17,607)	16,180	3,637

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

4. Funding for the Academy's charitable activities

	Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Restricted funds 2022	Total funds 2022 £
Educational operations	~	~	~
DfE/ESFA grants			
General Annual Grant	-	1,738,880	1,738,880
Other DfE/ESFA grants			
Pupil Premium	-	81,652	81,652
Universal Infant Free School Meals	-	69,098	69,098
Others	· -	62,579	62,579
	-	1,952,209	1,952,209
Other Government grants			
Higher Needs	-	54,143	54,143
Other Local Authority Grants	-	11,465	11,465
	-	65,608	65,608
Other income from the Academy's educational operations	28,740	-	28,740
	28,740	2,017,817	2,046,557
	28,740	2,017,817	2,046,557

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

4. Funding for the Academy's charitable activities (continued)

Educational operations	Unrestricted funds 2021 £	Restricted funds 2021 £	Total funds 2021 £
DfE/ESFA grants			
General Annual Grant	-	1,556,250	1,556,250
Other DfE/ESFA grants			
Pupil Premium	-	77,690	77,690
Universal Infant Free School Meals	-	66,246	66,246
Teachers' Pay and Pension Grant	-	74,688	74,688
Others	-	28,098	28,098
	-		1,802,972
Other Government grants			
Higher Needs	-	63,225	63,225
	-	63,225	63,225
Other income from the Academy's educational operations	26,376	-	26,376
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA) Catch-up Premium	-	33,240	33,240
COVID-19 additional funding (non-DfE/ESFA)		33,240	33,240
Other COVID-19 funding	-	12,487	12,487
	-	 12,487	12,487
	26,376	1,911,924	1,938,300
	26,376	1,911,924	1,938,300
			

The Academy received £33,240 of funding for catch-up premium in 2020/21 and costs incurred in respect of this funding totalled £25,540, with the remaining £7,700 spent during the 2020/21 academic year.

The Trust received £12,487 of COVID-19 funding in 2020/21 from the Local Authority, of which £12,487 was fully spent in the 2020/21 academic year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

5.	Income	from	other	trading	activities
----	--------	------	-------	---------	------------

		Unrestricted	Total
		funds 2022	funds 2022
		£ 2022	£ 2022
	Hire of facilities	20,539	20,539
	Other	76,796	76,796
		97,335	97,335
		=======================================	
		Unrestricted	Total
		funds	funds
		2021	2021
		£	£
	Hire of facilities	9,678	9,678
	Other	58,990	58,990
		68,668	68,668
6.	Investment income		
		Unrestricted	Total
		funds	funds
		2022 £	2022 £
	Bank interest	29	29
		Unrestricted	Total
		funds	funds
		2021 £	2021 £
		17	17
	Bank interest	7 /	7/

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

7. Expenditure

	Staff Costs 2022 £	Premises 2022 £	Other 2022 £	Total 2022 £
Expenditure on raising voluntary income	-	-	38,776	38,776
Expenditure on fundraising trading Educational operations:	-	-	4	4
Direct costs	1,519,922	-	89,360	1,609,282
Support costs	487,813	98,618	174,689	761,120
	2,007,735	98,618	302,829	2,409,182
	Staff Costs 2021 £	Premises 2021 £	Other 2021 £	Total 2021 £
Expenditure on raising voluntary income:				
Expenditure on fundraising trading activities:	-	-	5,378	5,378
	2,447	-	132	2,579
Expenditure on fundraising trading activities:				
Direct costs	1,434,073	-	71,294	1,505,367
Allocated support costs	411,868	93,803	121,342	627,013
	1,848,388	93,803	198,146	2,140,337

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

8. Analysis of expenditure by activi	ties
--------------------------------------	------

	Activities undertaken directly 2022 £	Support costs 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £
Education	1,609,282	761,120	2,370,402
	Activities		
	undertaken directly	Support costs	Total funds
	2021	2021	2021
	£	£	£
Education	1,505,367	627,013	2,132,380
		=	
Analysis of direct costs			
		Educational operations 2022 £	Total funds 2022 £
Staff costs		1,488,291	1,488,291
Depreciation		13,694	13,694
Educational supplies		41,866	41,866
Staff development		10,302	10,302
Other costs		23,498	23,498
Supply teachers		31,631	31,631
		1,609,282	1,609,282

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

_		***	
	Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)		
	Analysis of direct costs (continued)		
		Educational operations 2021	Total funds 2021 £
	Staff costs	1,373,770	1,373,770
	Depreciation	6,262	6,262
	Educational supplies	25,398	25,398
	Staff development	5,762	5,762
	Other costs	33,873	33,873
	Supply teachers	60,302	60,302
		1,505,367	1,505,367
	Analysis of support costs		
		Educational operations 2022	Total funds 2022 £
	Pension finance costs	35,000	35,000
	Staff costs	480,813	480,813
	Depreciation	2,462	2,462
	Other costs	11,636	11,636
	Maintenance of premises and equipment	39,277	39,277
	Cleaning	10,052	10,052
	Rent and rates	16,498	16,498
	Heat and light	25,008	25,008
	Insurance	9,190	9,190
	Security and transport	3,412	3,412
	Catering	34,445	34,445
	Technology costs	28,592	28,592
	Office overheads	29,391	29,391
	Legal and professional	14,906	14,906
	Bank interest and charges	2,514	2,514
	Improvements to diocesan property occupied by the academy trust	7,783	7,783
	Governance costs	10,141	10,141
		761,120	761,120

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

8. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs (continued)

9.

	Educational operations 2021	Total funds 2021 £
Pension finance costs	30,000	30,000
Staff costs	411,869	411,869
Depreciation	1,800	1,800
Other costs	5,791	5,791
Maintenance of premises and equipment	46,018	46,018
Cleaning	7,333	7,333
Rent and rates	13,848	13,848
Heat and light	29,630	29,630
Insurance	8,731	8,731
Security and transport	2,729	2,729
Catering	3,991	3,991
Technology costs	17,643	17,643
Office overheads	25,545	25,545
Legal and professional	14,655	14,655
Bank interest and charges	1,336	1,336
Improvements to diocesan property occupied by the academy trust	494	494
Governance costs	5,600	5,600
	627,013	627,013
Net income/(expenditure)		
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:		
	2022 £	2021 £
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets	16,156	8,061
Fees paid to auditors for:		
	3,150	3,000
- audit	3,130	0,000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1	n	Sta	ff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

	2022 £	2021 £
Wages and salaries	1,377,580	1,278,013
Social security costs	98,617	140,446
Pension costs	492,907	369,627
	1,969,104	1,788,086
Agency staff costs	31,631	60,302
	2,000,735	1,848,388

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:

	2022	2021
	No.	No.
Teachers	18	17
Administration and support	53	51
Management	6	6
	77	74
The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:		
	2022	2021
Teachers	14	13
Administration and support	25	25
Management	7	4
	46	42

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

10. Staff (continued)

c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

	2022 No.	2021 No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000	. 1	2

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy was £264,528 (2021 - £244,401).

11. Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the Academy. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

		2022	2021
		£	£
A Bright	Remuneration	60,000 - 65,000	60,000 - 65,000
	Pension contributions paid	15,000 - 20,000	10,000 - 15,000
V Biles	Remuneration	10,000 - 15,000	10,000 - 15,000
	Pension contributions paid	0 - 5,000	0 - 5,000

During the year ended 31 August 2022, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2021 - £NIL).

12. Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The Academy has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

13. Tangible fixed assets

	Furniture and equipment £	Computer equipment £	Total £
Cost or valuation			
At 1 September 2021	76,605	108,019	184,624
Additions	4,861	30,606	35,467
Disposals	(773)	(189)	(962)
At 31 August 2022	80,693	138,436	219,129
Depreciation			
At 1 September 2021	76,408	95,717	172,125
Charge for the year	972	15,184	16,156
On disposals	(773)	(189)	(962)
At 31 August 2022	76,607	110,712	187,319
Net book value			
At 31 August 2022	4,086	27,724	31,810
At 31 August 2021	197	12,302	12,499

St Mark's Church of England Primary School has been granted use of the school buildings from The Diocese of Salisbury and the Talbot Village Trust, under a supplemental agreement that does not require the school to pay rent. This agreement includes a two year notice period. The land and buildings have not been recognised as assets of the academy on the basis that the academy trust's rights over the premises do not meet the definition of an asset, as it does not have control over access or works. Whilst the church allows the academy trust access to the premises, it can revoke this at any time subject to a two year notice period. In addition the supplemental agreement states that the church is required to give consent to capital works.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

14.	Debtors		
		2022	2021
		£	£
	Due within one year		
	Trade debtors	1,831	1,450
	Other debtors	9,286	44,082
	Prepayments and accrued income	63,983	102,915
		75,100	148,447
15.	Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year		-
	•	2022 £	2021 £
	Trade creditors	28,608	27,307
	Other taxation and social security	23,505	21,932
	Other creditors	32,185	36,525
	Accruals and deferred income	109,753	57,055
		194,051	142,819
		2022 £	2021 £
	Deferred income		
	Deferred income at 1 September 2021	38,644	44,590
	Resources deferred during the year	51,631	38,644
	Amounts released from previous periods	(38,644)	(44,590)
		51,631	38,644

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds of £41,002 for Universal Infant Free School Meals, £5,791 from After School Clubs, £4,118 for the National Tutoring Programme and £720 from Breakfast Clubs that were received in advance for the 2022/23 academic year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

16. Statement of funds

	Balance at 1 September 2021 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2022 £
Inrestricted unds						
General Funds	153,526	170,580	(103,186)	(7,783)	-	213,137
Restricted general unds						
General Annual	0.440	4 700 000	(4 705 000)	(00.447)		
Grant (GAG)	9,443	1,738,880	(1,725,906)	(22,417)	-	-
Pupil Premium	-	81,652	(81,652)	-	-	-
ligher Needs Iniversal Infant	-	54,143	(54,143)	-	-	•
ree School Meals	_	69,098	(69,098)	-	-	-
Other Grants and		,	(), , , , ,			
onations	7,700	104,644	(108,258)	-	-	4,086
ension reserve	(2,173,000)	-	(243,000)	-	1,718,000	(698,000)
	(2,155,857)	2,048,417	(2,282,057)	(22,417)	1,718,000	(693,914)
Restricted fixed sset funds						
evolved formula apital	-	8,725	(2,542)		-	6,183
Capital expenditure						
om GAG and nrestricted	7,304	_	(17,042)	30,200		20,462
&P donations	200	_	(200)	-		
Capital donations	4,995	4,965	(4,155)	-	-	5,805
	12,499	13,690	(23,939)	30,200	-	32,450
otal Restricted unds	(2,143,358)	2,062,107	(2,305,996)	7,783	1,718,000	(661,464)
otal funds	(1,989,832)	2,232,687	(2,409,182)	<u> </u>	1,718,000	(448,327)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

16. Statement of funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Income from the ESFA which is to be used for the normal running costs of the academy, including education and support costs.

Pupil Premium

Funding received from the ESFA for children that qualify for free school meals to enable the academy to address the current underlying inequalities between those children and their wealthier peers.

Higher Needs

Income received from the Local Authority to fund further support for pupils with additional needs.

Universal Infant Free School Meals

Income provided by the ESFA to fund a free school meal for every pupil in Reception and Years 1 and 2.

Other Grants and Donations

Funding received from the Government and Local Authority to be used for the normal running costs of the academy, including education and support costs. The donation from the Talbot Village Trust is for the purposes of bolstering the school's financial reserves and therefore, it is anticipated it will be ring fenced and not used for any expenditure items unless agreed with the Trust beforehand.

Pension Reserve

The academy's share of the assets and liabilities in the Local Government Pension Scheme. This is currently in deficit due to an excess of scheme liabilities over scheme assets which was inherited on conversion to an academy.

Fixed assets transferred on conversion

The represents the equipment donated to the school from the Local Authority on conversion to an academy.

DfE/ESFA capital grants

Devolved Formula Capital funding from the ESFA to cover the maintenance and purchase of the academy's assets.

S&P Donations

This represents income received from S&P specifically for the purchase of fixed assets.

Capital Expenditure from GAG

This represents funds transferred from the restricted GAG fund to purchase fixed assets.

Capital donations

This represents funds transferred from unrestricted donations to purchase fixed assets. Also included here are laptops (fixed assets) that were donated to the schools to support children from low income families during lockdown.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2022.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

16. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

	Balance at 1 September 2020 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2021 £
Inrestricted unds						
General Funds	66,128	100,125	(12,727)	<u> </u>	-	153,526
Restricted eneral funds						
General Annual Grant (GAG)	_	1,556,250	(1,548,182)	1,375	_	9,443
Pupil Premium		77,690	•	1,570		3,443
	-	•	(77,690) (63,335)	-	-	-
ligher Needs Iniversal Infant Tree School	-	63,225	(63,225)	-	-	
/leals	-	66,246	(66,246)	-	-	-
eacher ension/pay						
rant	· -	74,688	(74,688)	-	-	-
Catch-up remium	-	33,240	(25,540)	-	-	7,700
Other COVID-19 unding	-	12,487	(12,487)	-	-	-
onations	50,000	(17,607)	(32,393)	-	_	-
Other DfE/ESFA	20,000	(,,	(==,===)			
rants	-	28,098	(28,098)	-	-	-
ension reserve	(1,895,000)	-	(191,000)	-	(87,000)	(2,173,000)
	(1,845,000)	1,894,317	(2,119,549)	1,375	(87,000)	(2,155,857)
Restricted fixed sset funds						
Devolved ormula capital	-	8,680	-	(8,680)		-
Capital expenditure from GAG and	4,001		(4,002)	7,305		7,304
nrestricted	•	-	(4,002)		-	
&P donations	1,500	-	(1,300)	-	-	200

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

16. Statement of funds (continued)

	Balance at 1 September 2020 £	Income £	`Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2021 £
Capital donations	254	7,500	(2,759)	-	-	4,995
	5,755	16,180	(8,061)	(1,375)	-	12,499
Total Restricted funds	(1,839,245)	1,910,497	(2,127,610)	<u>-</u>	(87,000)	(2,143,358)
Total funds	(1,773,117)	2,010,622	(2,140,337)		(87,000)	(1,989,832)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

17. Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

	Unrestricted funds 2022 £	Restricted funds 2022 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2022	Total funds 2022 £
Tangible fixed assets	-	-	31,810	31,810
Current assets	407,188	4,086	640	411,914
Creditors due within one year	(194,051)	-	-	(194,051)
Provisions for liabilities and charges	-	(698,000)	-	(698,000)
Total	213,137	(693,914)	32,450	(448,327)
Analysis of net assets between funds - p	orior year			
	Unrestricted	Postriotod	Restricted	Total

			Restrictea	
	Unrestricted	Restricted	fixed asset	Total
	funds	funds	funds	funds
	2021	2021	2021	2021
	£	£	£	£
Tangible fixed assets	-		12,499	12,499
Current assets	296,345	17,143	-	313,488
Creditors due within one year	(142,819)	-	-	(142,819)
Provisions for liabilities and charges	-	(2,173,000)	-	(2,173,000)
Total	153,526	(2,155,857)	12,499	(1,989,832)
IUIAI				

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

	Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating act	ivities	
		2022 £	2021 £
	Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of financial activities)	(176,495)	(129,715)
	Adjustments for:		
	Depreciation	16,156	8,061
	Capital grants from DfE and other capital income	(13,690)	(16, 180)
	Interest receivable	(29)	(17)
	Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable	207,000	161,000
	Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost	36,000	30,000
	Decrease/(increase) in debtors	73,347	(4,352)
	Increase/(decrease) in creditors	57,160	(6,633)
	Net cash provided by operating activities	199,449	42,164
19.	Cash flows from investing activities		
		2022 £	2021
	Dividends, interest and rents from investments	29	£ 17
	Purchase of tangible fixed assets	(36,430)	-
	Capital grants from DfE Group	8,725	8,680
	Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities	(27,676)	8,697
20.	Analysis of cash and cash equivalents		
		2022	2021
	Cook in hand and at hank	£	£ 165.041
	Cash in hand and at bank	£ 336,814 	£ 165,041

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

21. Analysis of changes in net debt

	At 1 September 2021 £	Cash flows £	At 31 August 2022 £
Cash at bank and in hand	165,041	171,773	336,814
	165,041	171,773	336,814

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

22. Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Dorset County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £32,113 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2021 - £29,094) and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)
- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

22. Pension commitments (continued)

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £173,474 (2021 - £159,878).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website (https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £143,000 (2021 - £131,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £113,000 (2021 - £103,000) and employees' contributions totalled £30,000 (2021 - £28,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 18.8 per cent for employers and 5.5-6.8 per cent for employees.

As described in note 1.11 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy, who were the employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the Academy at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

	2022	2021
	%	%
Rate of increase in salaries	3.95	3.9
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation	2.95	2.9
Discount rate for scheme liabilities	4.25	1.65
Inflation assumption (CPI)	2.95	2.9

The UK is currently experiencing a period of high inflation. As the deferred pensioner and pensioner obligations in the LGPS are increased each April in line with the previous September's rate of CPI, the high level of inflation is expected to lead to a high Pension Increase Order being applied in April 2023. Therefore, the actuary has adjusted the CPI assumption to reflect the likely significant inflationary increase to LGPS benefits in April 2023. Although not yet confirmed by government, the annual increase is due to be based on the level of CPI increases between September 2021 and September 2022, which has been estimated to be 9.5%. As a result, within the standard CPI assumption derivation, the actuary has allowed for a year 1 CPI figure of 9.5%.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

22. Pension commitments (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

	2022 Years	2021 Years
Retiring today		
Males	22.1	23.1
Females	24.2	24.6
Retiring in 20 years		
Males	23.4	24.4
Females	25.6	26.1
Sensitivity analysis	2022 £000	2021 £000
Discount rate +0.1%	(51)	(85)
Discount rate -0.1%	53	87
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase	69	152
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease	(67)	(146)
CPI rate +0.1%	49	78
CPI rate -0.1%	(48)	(76)

Share of scheme assets

The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

A	31	At 31 August
August 2	022	2021
	£	£
Equities 857,	000	842,000
Gilts 174,	000	181,000
Corporate bonds 73,	000	85,000
Property 283,	000	230,000
Cash and other liquid assets 24,	000	25,000
Multi Asset Credit 72,	000	72,000
Diversified Growth Fund 106,	000	102,000
Total market value of assets 1,589,	000	1,537,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £-66,000 (2021 - £261,000).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

22.	Pension commitments (continued)	

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Imancial activities are as follows	·.	
	2022 £	2021 £
Current service cost	(320,000)	(264,000)
Interest income	26,000	20,000
Interest cost	(61,000)	(49,000)
Administrative expenses	(1,000)	(1,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities	(356,000)	(294,000)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follow	/s:	
	2022 £	2021 £
At 1 September	3,710,000	3,066,000
Current service cost	320,000	264,000
Interest cost	61,000	49,000
Employee contributions	30,000	28,000
Actuarial (gains)/losses	(1,810,000)	328,000
Benefits paid	(24,000)	(25,000)
At 31 August	2,287,000	3,710,000
Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assets were as t	follows:	
	2022 £	2021 £
At 1 September	1,537,000	1,171,000
Interest income	26,000	20,000
Actuarial (losses)/gains	(92,000)	241,000
Employer contributions	113,000	103,000
Employee contributions	30,000	28,000
Benefits paid	(24,000)	(25,000)
Administrative expenses	(1,000)	(1,000)
At 31 August	1,589,000	1,537,000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

23. Operating lease commitments

The Academy had no commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 August 2022.

24. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

25. Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Academy's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

L Whittle, wife of P Whittle, a trustee, is employed by the academy trust as a teaching assistant. L Whittle's appointment was made in open competition and P Whittle was not involved in the decision-making process regarding appointment. L Whittle is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.